
Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN AGENDA

Barbara Landry Meeting Room
2 Main Street

MONDAY, AUGUST 9, 2021 6:30 PM

  
1. Call to Order
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance
  
3. Citizens' Forum
  
4. Scheduled Appointments

 4.1. Senator Gary Daniels, legislative updates 
  
5. Administration
 5.1. Administrative Update 
  
6. Staff Reports
 6.1. Cruiser Computer Purchase 
 6.2. Forestry Vehicle Acquisition 
 6.3. DPW Electrical Upgrade and Electric to new mechanics garage 
 6.4. New Hire, Accountant 
  
7. Approvals
 7.1. AP, Payroll and Minutes Approvals 
  
8. Action Items
  
9. Old/New Business
  
 Adjournment
  
 Next Meeting: August 23, 2021

Page 1 of 68



Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89479689621
Or Telephone: (301) 715-8592  Webinar ID: 894 7968 9621

Page 2 of 68

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89479689621


Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Administrative Update Department: Administration
Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
None

Page 3 of 68



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Cruiser Computer Purchase Department: Police Department
Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 Staff Contact: Mark Reams

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
Planned replacement of obsolescent cruiser computer system.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
$13,099.25
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
Approve
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
Move to award bid in the amount of $13,099.25 to Patrol PC for the purchase of 
replacement police cruiser computer equipment.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 20210727100035

Page 4 of 68



Page 5 of 68



Page 6 of 68



Page 7 of 68



Page 8 of 68



Page 9 of 68



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Forestry Vehicle Acquisition Department: Fire Rescue
Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 Staff Contact: Matt Conley

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
NH Division of Forest & Lands offers up the 5 Ton Trucks for municipalities to obtain these vehicles 
for fighting brush/forest fires. These vehicles are donated to the municipality to use for as long as 
they want. The municipality is responsible for the care and maintenance of the vehicles. The other 
responsibility we would face is to paint the vehicle to mirror a fire truck and not a military truck. We 
will be one of the six towns that have taken possession of the available trucks this year.

The intent is to take possession of this 2002 military specific vehicle with 11,000 miles. The average 
cost for one of these vehicles is $135,000. They are all wheel drive capable and can access many 
types of topography.
This is to replace the current Forestry 1 which is a 1982 International Truck with a standard 
transmission of which there are very few than can drive it.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
Per the agreement with the State of NH Division of Forest & Lands, we have to get the 
vehicle painted within 6 months of obtaining the vehicle. Additionally, we will need to 
transfer the equipment on the current vehicle to the newer one. The estimated cost for 
this $700.00 - $1,00.00 as we can do the majority of the work.
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
None
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
To obtain this vehicle to replace a 39 year old vehicle.
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
For the BOS to approve the acquisition of this 2002 Military Specific Truck for Amherst Fire Rescue 
at the recommendation of Chief Matthew Conley.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Forest Vehicle Docs

Page 10 of 68



Page 11 of 68



Page 12 of 68



Page 13 of 68



Page 14 of 68



Page 15 of 68



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: DPW Electrical Upgrade and Electric 
to new mechanics garage

Department: Public Works

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 Staff Contact: Eric Hahn

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The New Mechanics garage needs electrical service and wiring.  The DPW yard/offices 
presently has several electric service drops that are at capacity.   This bid proposal 
includes a consolidation of service to the existing vehicle bays and for the new 
mechanics' garage to be included on the emergency generator.   The service 
consolidation will allow future changes without the need for another service drop.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
The cost for the mechanics garage portion is within the anticipated cost of the building, 
the cost for the new 400 amp panel in the equipment bays is extra, but within the 
budget for routine maintenance/upgrade.
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
n/a
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
Award the bid to LBA Inc. (DBA Boisvert Electric)
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to award LBA inc. bid 02-22 for $40,950 to install the electrical wiring and 
service upgrade for the DPW equipment bays and Mechanics garage. 
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 02-22 Elect Work award Form
2. LBA 02-22
3. Gemini Electric 02-22
4. CDS 02-22
5. 02-22 steel building electrical 7-22-21 (2)

Page 16 of 68



TOWN OF AMHERST
         

Town Department:   DPW Date:  July 30, 2021

Line Item:  01-4194-40-2430 Budget Amount: $125,000

Bid #:02-22 Item: Date Bid To Be Awarded:  August 9, 2021

 VENDOR Name and Address    PRICE/UNIT    TOTAL                OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
                                                                   Interest Rate                                                                 

 7.  Loren Morse Electrical Services
      Nashua NH                                                                                      NO BID
  8. Stellos Electric Supply
      Nashua NH                                                                                      NO BID                                                                                  
Recommend bid be awarded to:  LBA, Inc. (Boisvert Elect)

                                                                                                                                         Signature of Town Administrator / Date

Please attach to this request a copy of the specifications and proposal from the lowest qualified bidder.
Please forward, for review purposes, a copy of bids in excess of $10,000.00 to the Board of Selectmen at least one week prior 
to a vote of the Board of Selectmen.  

CDS Unlimited
1. Bennington NH                                                                            79,800.00
    Gagnon Electrical Services
2. Nashua NH                                                                                      NO BID                                                     

            
                   

3.  Gemini Electric
     Auburn NH                                                                                   47,717.00    

                       
                   

 4.  Granite State Electricians                                                                NO BID
     Manchester NH  

                   
.

                     
5.  LBA, Inc.
     Manchester NH                                                                            40,950.00
6.  Longchamps Electric, Inc.
     Manchester NH                                                                                NO BID

Page 17 of 68



Page 18 of 68



Page 19 of 68



Page 20 of 68



Page 21 of 68



Page 22 of 68



Page 23 of 68



Page 24 of 68



1 

Town of Amherst 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Department of Public Works 

 

Contract Documents and Technical 
Specifications  

 

Steel Building Electrical 
 

# 02-22 

Page 25 of 68



2 

  

 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH  03031 
Tel. (603) 673-2317     Fax (603) 249-8857 

 
ehahn@amherstnh.gov 

 
 

BID NUMBER #02-22 

          

 

INVITATION TO BID 

 

 

The Town of Amherst NH is inviting proposals for contract at the Department of Public Works 

office, 22 Dodge Rd., Amherst, New Hampshire, for upgrading our existing main building 

electrical service panel to accommodate and connect electrical service to our NEW Steel 

Building, and for the wiring of our NEW Steel Building itself, on the Public Works grounds, 22 

Dodge Rd., Amherst, NH. 

 

Bidding Documents may be obtained, at no charge, from the Public Works Office at 22 Dodge 

Road in Amherst, NH, between the hours of 7AM and 3PM Monday through Friday. 

 

Review of the NEW Mechanic’s Garage site can be arranged by appointment with the Director 

of Public Works or his designee by calling the DPW office at 603-673-2317. 

 

 

Bids will be received at the Amherst Town Hall, 2 Main St., Amherst, NH, until 11:00 AM 

on Friday, July 30, 2021.  Shortly thereafter, bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at any 

available Public Works office, 22 Dodge Rd., Amherst NH.  Award will be made by the Board 

of Selectmen at a regular board meeting sometime thereafter. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26 of 68



3 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

June 3, 2021 
 

BID NUMBER # 02-22      

Steel Building Electrical 

CONTRACTOR’S PROPOSAL 
 

The undersigned, as a lawfully authorized agent for the below named Bidder/Contractor, has carefully 

examined the Proposal form of this bid, to be known as Bid Number 02-22.  The intent of this bid is to 

upgrade our existing electrical service at the DPW garage to accommodate and connect electrical service 

to our NEW Steel Building.  This bid shall also be for wiring our NEW steel building itself to include any 

specified receptacles, lights, conduits, etc.  This bid shall also include connecting our existing 50K 

generator to the NEW 400A main building service panel.  An electronic PDF copy of the steel building 

plans are available upon request. 

 

Additionally, the undersigned, with General Provisions, Specifications and other bid documents, binds 

himself/herself and his/her company on award to them by the Board of Selectmen to execute a contract 

agreement under this Proposal in accordance with such award, on such form and in such manner as is 

prescribed by the Town, and to provide all necessary equipment, labor, materials and other items or 

services needed to perform all the requirements for the project, in Amherst, NH, for the following: 

 
- Upgrade existing DPW Garage service to accommodate a new service connection to the 

NEW steel building. 

- Connect upgraded DPW Garage service panel to feed NEW steel building. 

- Connect existing 50K generator to main building NEW 400A service panel. 

- Install all wiring, conduit (underground conduit installed by DPW), receptacles, and 

lighting to satisfy stated specifications. 

 

Bid Total: $____________________________________________________ 
 

 

Bid Total: (written)________________________________________________ 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

          

Print Bidder/Contractor’s Name 

 

              

Print Representative’s Name and Title     Representative’s Signature 

 

              

Street       City, State and Zip Code 

 

              

            Telephone and FAX Number         Date 

 

Person signing proposal must be a person in your company authorized to sign a Contract with the Town of 

Amherst, NH. 

Page 27 of 68



4 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

 

June 3, 2021 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

 

This AGREEMENT is made August _____, 2021, BETWEEN the Owner, Town of Amherst, 

 

and the Contractor: ________________________________________________________ 

 

for the following Project: Steel Building Electrical at Public Works. 

 

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows: 

 

 

ARTICLE I 

THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

The contractor shall complete the Work described in the Contract Documents for the project.  

The Contract documents consist of: 

 

Table of Contents 

 

1) Invitation to Bid. (pages 1-2) 

2) Contractor’s Proposal. (pages 3-4) 

3) Contract Agreement, dated June 3, 2021. (pages 4-5) 

4) General Provisions , dated June 3, 2021. (pages 6-11) 

5) Specifications, dated June 3, 2021. (pages 12-13) 

6) Securities, dated June 3, 2021. (pages 14-19) 

7) Notice to Proceed, dated June 3, 2021. (pages 20-21) 

8) Contractor’s Affidavit, dated June 3, 2021. (page 22) 

9) Contractor’s Release, dated June 3, 2021. (pages 23-24) 

10) Steel Building Plans, Attachment A, dated June 3, 2021. (page 25) 

11) This agreement signed by the Owner and the Contractor. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE II 

DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION DATE 

 

The date of commencement shall be the date of this agreement. The Steel Building 

Electrical at Public Works shall be completed in its entirety prior to October 1, 2021.   

 

Page 28 of 68



5 

ARTICLE III 

CONTRACT SUM 

          Unit Price 
 

1. Existing building service upgrade cost:              $_________________ 

(Incl. all work from pole to new meter socket) 

2.  Wire new building cost:     $_________________ 

 (Incl. all work from new service panel to & including new building) 
 

 

 

Total Project price (1 & 2)       $_________________ 

 

Total in words ___________________________________________________________ 

  

             ______ 

 

Company Name ___________________________________________________________  

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Contractor’s Authorized Signature    Date 

 

  

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Owner’s signature      Date 

 
Person signing proposal must be a person in your company authorized to sign a Contract with the Town of 

Amherst, NH. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

PAYMENT 
 

Based on the Contractor’s Application for Payment for complete work, certified by the Owner or 

the Owner’s Agent, the Owner shall pay the Contractor as follows: 
 

1. Submittals for labor shall be for completed work only.   

2. Submittals for electrical materials or related project hardware may be submitted in 

two parts: 

 1st Submittal- 50% of electrical materials and/or related project hardware prior to 

beginning of work. 

 2nd Submittal-50% of electrical materials and/or related project hardware after 

completion of work.  

3. Work shall be certified, and payment made within fifteen (15) working days of the 

approved amount of the invoice. 
 

This agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above. 

 

 

 

Page 29 of 68



6 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

 

June 3, 2021 

 

 

General Provisions 
 

 

1. Each bid shall be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly identified with the Bidder’s name 

and marked “Town of Amherst Bid # 02-22” and will be received at the Amherst Town Hall, 

2 Main St., Amherst, NH, until 11:00 AM, Friday, July 30, 2021.   

 

2. Shortly thereafter, bids will be publicly opened and read aloud from any available office or 

conference room, Public Works office, 22 Dodge Rd., Amherst, NH.  Bids when opened 

shall be irrevocable for a period of thirty (30) calendar days following bid-opening date.  

Following a review of the bids by staff, the Board of Selectmen will award the bid at a 

regular public meeting. 

 

3. The Town expressly reserves the right to reject any or all bids as the Board of Selectmen may 

determine and to waive defects in form of minor irregularities where the best interests of the 

Town would be served. 

 

4. Prior to submitting a Bid, each Bidder will, at his/her own expense, make such additional 

investigations and tests as the Bidder may deem necessary to determine his/her Bid for 

performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 

Upon request, the Town of Amherst will provide each Bidder access to the site to conduct 

such investigations and tests as each Bidder deems necessary prior to submission of his/her 

Bid. 

 

The Submission of a Bid is an acknowledgement from the Bidder that he/she has complied 

with every requirement and that the Contract Documents are sufficient in scope and detail for 

the performance of the Work. 

  

5. The bid price shall not include Federal or State taxes.  If such are applicable, the successful 

Bidder shall furnish the Town with the necessary tax-exempt forms in triplicate upon 

submission of the invoice. 

 

6. The Bidder shall not, either directly or indirectly, enter into any agreement, participate in any 

collusion, or otherwise take any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection 

with this bid. 

 

7. The successful Bidder shall not use the name of the Town in any advertising without first 

obtaining written permission from the Board of Selectmen. 

Page 30 of 68



7 

 

8. Any change to the provisions or specifications of this Bid shall be made by written 

addendum issued no later than four (4) working days prior to the bid opening date.  

Prospective Bidders shall have complete responsibility for being aware of any, and all, 

addenda. 

 

9. The bidder’s attention is drawn to the fact that they shall observe and comply with all 

applicable Federal and State Laws and Regulations, Town Ordinances and the Rules and 

Regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over the project, and these shall apply to the 

contract the same as though written out herein in full, and the Contractor shall indemnify the 

Town and its representatives against any claim or liability arising from, or based on, any such 

law, ordinance, rules and regulation by themselves or by their employees.  The successful 

Bidder shall notify the Town immediately if these bid documents are at variance with any 

laws or regulations. 

 

10. The Town may make such investigations as it may deem necessary to determine the ability of 

the bidder to perform the services, and the bidder shall furnish the Town all such information 

for this purpose that the Town may request.  The Town reserves the right to reject any bid if 

the evidence submitted by, or investigation of, such bidder fails to satisfy the Town that such 

bidder is properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the contract and to complete the 

work contemplated therein. 

 

11. The Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits and licenses for this work in accordance 

with the bid documents, contract and specifications required for a complete and finished job.   

 

12. The Contractor shall be responsible for all damage to property, or injury to persons, arising 

out of their actions or failure to act.  They shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town from 

any, and all, demands, suits, or judgments arising in conjunction with or as a result of the 

Contractor’s performance of this contract.   

 

13. The bidder shall, in the employment of labor, comply with the laws of the State of New 

Hampshire, including but not limited to Chapter 275, RSA, as amended, “Hours of Labor”, 

Chapter 279, RSA, as amended, “Minimum Wage Law”. 

 

14. The bidder shall take out and maintain at their own expense insurance against damages 

arising from injury to their employees in accordance with Chapter 281, RSA, as amended, 

“Worker’s Compensation Acts” and from claims for damages because of bodily injury 

including death and for all property damages, including without limitations, damage to 

buildings, which might arise from and during operations under this contract, whether such 

operations be by themselves or by any subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by either of them.  The Contractor shall insure the activities of their subcontractors 

in their own policy, for subcontractors Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance and 

Vehicle Liability Insurance of the types and amounts as herein specified.  Approval of 

insurance by the Town shall not relieve the Liability of the Contractor there under.  

Certificates from the insurance companies as to the amount and type of coverage, terms of 

the policy, etc. shall be filed with the Selectmen’s Office in single copy.   

 

Page 31 of 68



8 

A.  COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY INSURANCE.  The 

Contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of this Contract the statutory 

Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance for all of their 

employees to be engaged in work on the project under this Contract and, in case any 

such work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide 

Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance for all work of the 

latter’s employees to be engaged in such work. 

 

B.  BODILY INJURY LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY.  The 

Contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of this Contract such Bodily 

Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability Insurance and Automobile Bodily 

Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability Insurance as shall protect them and 

any subcontractors performing work covered by the Contract from claims for 

damages for personal injury, including accidental death, as well as claims for 

Property Damage which may arise from operations under this Contract, whether such 

operations be by themselves or by the subcontractor or by anyone directly and/or 

indirectly employed by either of them, and the amount of insurance shall not be less 

than: 

 

(1) Bodily Injury Liability Insurance, in an amount not less than Five Hundred 

Thousand Dollars ($500,000) for injuries, including wrongful death to any one 

person and subject to the same limits for each person in an amount not less 

than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) on account of one accident. 

 

(2) Property Damage Insurance in an amount not less than Five Hundred 

Thousand Dollars ($500,000) for damages on account of one accident or all 

accidents. 

 

C.  TOWN OF AMHERST’S PROTECTIVE LIABILITY INSURANCE.  The 

Contractor shall name the Town of Amherst as one of the insured on all policies 

required, except Worker’s Compensation. 

 

D.  All policies and certificates of insurance shall carry a ten (10) day notice of 

cancellation or change in expiration and notice of such cancellation or change in 

expiration shall be sent to the Board of Selectmen. 

 

15. The bidder is to submit Proposal on the attached Bid Form of Unit Prices. 

 

16. The successful bidder shall execute and deliver the contract within ten (10) calendar days to 

the Town. 

 

17. Work on this project shall commence after notification of award and as specified in the 

proposal and shall be completed in its entirety prior to October 1, 2021. 

 

18. The successful bidder, upon their failure or refusal to execute and deliver the Contract and 

security, if required, within ten (10) calendar days after they have received notice of the 

acceptance of their bid, shall forfeit to the Town, as liquidated damages for such failure or 

refusal, the security deposited with their bid. 

Page 32 of 68



9 

 

19. The bidder will guarantee the work and materials, and the work and the materials of all 

subcontractors, for a period of one (1) year from the date of acceptance of the work by the 

Town and agree to leave the work in perfect order at completion.  Neither the final certificate 

of payment nor any provision in the Contract documents shall relieve them of responsibility 

for negligence, or faulty materials, or workmanship within the extent and period provided by 

law, and upon written notice they shall remedy any defaults due thereto and pay all expenses 

for any damage to work resulting there from.  It is hereby specifically agreed and understood 

that this guarantee shall not include any cause or causes other than defective work or 

materials.  It is further understood that the Board of Selectmen shall be the final judge as to 

whether or not any defect is a defect in workmanship and/or materials, which is the bidder’s 

responsibility. 

 

20. The Contract Documents shall include the “Invitation to Bid”, “Contractor’s Proposal”, 

“Agreement”, “General Provisions”, “Specifications”, “Securities”, “Notice to Proceed”, 

“Contractor’s Affidavit”, “Contractor’s Release”, Attachment A (Steel Building Plans), and 

any issued addenda, and the final executed contract Agreement. 

 

The intent of these documents is to include all labor, materials, appliances and 

services of every kind necessary for the proper execution of the work and the terms and 

conditions of payment thereof. 

 

The documents are to be considered as one, and whatever is called for by any one of the 

documents shall be as binding as if called for by all. 

 

21. A complete understanding of the conditions as they exist is required by a careful personal 

examination of the work at the site.  The Contractor also shall examine carefully the 

specifications and the Contract forms of the work contemplated.  The Contractor shall not, at 

any time after the execution of the Contract, set up any claims whatsoever based upon 

insufficient data or incorrectly assumed conditions, nor shall it claim any misunderstanding 

in regard to the nature, conditions, or character of the work to be performed under this 

contract, and it shall assume all risks resulting from any change in the conditions which may 

occur during the progress of the work. 
 

22. The Town shall make payment on account of the Contract as follows:  The Contractor shall 

invoice the Town for the work completed.  After receipt of the Contractor’s invoice by the 

Town, the Town’s agent shall inspect the premises and if the work has been completed in 

accordance with the Contract Documents, the Town will make payment on or within fifteen 

(15) working days of the approved amount of the invoice.  Before final payment is made to 

the Contractor, it shall submit evidence satisfactory to the Board of Selectmen that all 

payrolls, material bills, and other indebtedness connected with the work have been paid. 
 

23. After execution of the Contract, there shall be no changes in the Bid Documents except by a 

written amendment executed in the same manner as the Contract or by Change Order as 

described below: 
 

CHANGE ORDERS: 
 

Page 33 of 68



10 

A.  The Town, without invalidating the Contract, may order changes in the work within 

the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, 

the Contract sum and the Contract time being adjusted accordingly.  All such changes 

in the work shall be executed under the applicable conditions of the Contract 

Documents. 
 

B.  A change order is a written order to the Contractor signed by the Board of Selectmen 

and the Contractor, after execution of the Contract, authorizing a change in the work 

and/or an adjustment in the Contract sum and/or in the Contract time. 
 

C.  The terms of any change order shall be mutually agreed to by the Contractor and the 

Board of Selectmen. 
 

24. The entire work contemplated by the Contract shall be under the supervision of the Board of 

Selectmen, or their agents so designated, and all questions concerning the prosecution of the 

work shall be referred to and decided by them. 
 

25. DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME.  It is an essential part of 

the Contract that the Contractor shall perform fully, entirely and in an acceptable manner, the 

work under Contract within the time stated in the Contract.  If the Contractor finds it 

impossible for reasons beyond its control to complete the work within the Contract time, it 

shall make a written request to the Public Works Director for an extension of time setting 

forth the reasons which it believes will justify the granting of its request.  The Contractor’s 

plea that insufficient time was specified is not a valid reason for extension of time.  If the 

Board of Selectmen finds that the work was delayed because of conditions beyond the 

control and without the fault of the Contractor, including but not limited to acts of God, 

utility relocations, strikes, delays in the delivery of critical materials, and work requiring 

specialists for whose starting time a reasonable latitude must be allowed, the Board of 

Selectmen may extend the time for completion in such amount as conditions justify.  When 

extension of the Contract time is required due to delays in the delivery of critical materials, 

sufficient evidence must be furnished to the Town at the time the delay occurs showing that 

such delay results from the materials being unavailable by reason of unusual market 

conditions such as an industry-wide strike, natural disaster or an area-wide shortage which 

arises after bids are taken and which prevents the procurement of materials within the 

allowable time of limitations.  Delays due to slow delivery from a source of supply when the 

required material is available elsewhere will not be considered as justification for an 

extension of time. 

 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME.  For each day that any work shall remain 

uncompleted after the Contract time specified for completion of the work, including 

extensions, the fixed daily charge specified below will be deducted from any money 

due the Contractor, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages.  Permitting the 

Contractor to continue and finish the work or any part of it after the time fixed for its 

completion, or after the date to which the time for completion may have been 

extended, will in no way operate as a waiver on the part of the Town of any of its 

rights under the Contract.  The Board of Selectmen may waive such portions of the 

liquidated damages as may occur after the work is in condition for safe and 

convenient use.  The fixed, agreed liquidated damages shall be $250.00 per day. 

 

Page 34 of 68



11 

The Town may withhold any amount of money otherwise due the Contractor to offset 

such liquidated damage and the Contractor and its SURETY shall be liable to the 

Town for all additional liquidated damages as provided herein. 

 

26. ASSIGNMENT.  The contractor shall not assign, sublet, or transfer its interests in this 

agreement without written consent of the Town of Amherst.  

 

27. In determining the successful bidder, in addition to price, the following shall be considered: 

 

a. The ability and skill of the bidder to perform the contract; 

b. Whether the bidder can perform the contract promptly without delay or 

interference; 

c. The character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience, and efficiency of the 

bidder; and 

d. The quality of performance of previous contracts for services. Please provide a 

reference list of five recently completed similar historic jobs including project 

value. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35 of 68



12 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

 

June 3, 2021 

 

 

Specifications 
 

The purpose of the specifications in this document are intended to summarize the electrical 

services needed to complete the project identified in this document as Steel Building Electrical.   

 

The successful bidder shall provide all necessary equipment, labor, materials and other items or 

services needed to perform all requirements for the installation of the Steel Building Electrical, 

in Amherst, NH, with the following specifications: 

 

1. Upgrade Existing Electrical Service 

 

a. Upgrade existing DPW main building service to single phase 400A 

i. Install (1) 400A Meter Socket 

ii. Install (1) 400A Panel Single Phase 

 

b. Install appropriate wire to power NEW 400A main building meter socket from 

existing service pole 

i. Underground conduits from service pole to new meter socket 

location have been installed by DPW. 

 

c. Connect existing 50K Generator to NEW main building 400A Service Panel 

 

d. Make all necessary connections 

 

2. Wire NEW Steel Building 

 

a. Install NEW 200A Service Panel 

 

b. Install appropriate wire to power NEW 200A steel building meter socket from 

NEW 400A main building panel 

i. Underground conduits from NEW 400A panel location to NEW 

200A steel building panel location have been installed by DPW. 

 

c. Connect existing 50K Generator to NEW steel building 200A Service Panel 

through NEW 400A Service Panel feed 

 

d. Install power for the following: 

i. (1) Air Compressor 

ii. (2) Welding Outlets 

Page 36 of 68



13 

iii. (2) Hanging Welding Outlets 

iv. (1) Car Lift 

v. (4) Overhead Door Openers 

vi. (2) Paddle Fans 3’ Extensions 

vii. Overhead Radiant Heat (Two Locations) 

viii. (1) Workbench Shop Light 

 

e. Install (2) Quad Outlets (Hanging) 

 

f. Install (8) Quad Receptacles 

 

g. Install (2) Extender GFCI Duplexes 

 

h. Install (6) Low Bay Lights LED 

 

i. Install (1) 8’ LED Strip Light 

 

j. Install (4) LED Wall Packs 

 

k. Install (12) LED Exit/EBY Combos 

 

l. Install (2) WP Remote Heads 

 

m. Install (2) LED EBUs 

 

n. Make all necessary connections 

 

o. Obtain all necessary permits from the Community Development Office 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37 of 68



14 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

June 3, 2021 

 

 

PAYMENT BOND 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Contractor) 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 
(Address of Contractor)    

 

a _______________________________________________, hereinafter called Principal 
(Corporation, Partnership, or Individual)  

 

and ____________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Surety) 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 
(Address of Surety) 

 

hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto: 

  

Town of Amherst 

2 Main Street 

Amherst, NH 03031 

 

hereinafter called the Owner and unto all persons, firms, and corporations who or which may 

furnish labor, or who furnish materials to perform as described under the contract and to their 

successors and assigns, in the total aggregate penal sum of ________________________dollars,  
 

($_______________) in lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum and  
 

truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns,  
 

jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a 
 

certain Agreement with the OWNER, dated the ___________day of _____________ 2021, a  

 

copy of which is hereto attached and made a part hereof the construction of the  

 

Steel Building Electrical 

 

Page 38 of 68



15 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms, and 

corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the prosecution of the WORK 

provided for in such Agreement, and any authorized extension or modifications thereof, 

including all amounts due for materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, coal, coke, repairs on 

machinery, equipment and tools, consumed or used in connection with the execution of such 

WORK, and for all labor cost incurred in such Work including subcontractors, and to any 

mechanic or materialman lien holder whether it acquires its lien by operation of State or Federal 

Law; then this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 

 

PROVIDED, that beneficiaries or claimants hereunder shall be limited to the subcontractors, and 

persons, firms, and corporations having a direct contract with the PRINCIPAL or its 

SUBCONTRACTORS. 

 

PROVIDED FURTHER, that the said Surety for value received hereby stipulates and agrees 

that no charge, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the 

WORK to be performed there under or the SPECIFICATIONS accompanying the same shall 

in any way affect its obligation on this BOND and it does hereby waive notice of any such 

change, extension of time, alterations or additions to the term of the contract or to the WORK or 

to the SPECIFICATIONS. 

 

PROVIDED, FURTHER that no suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant: 

(a) Unless claimant, other than one having a direct contact with the Principal shall have given 

written notice to any two of the following:  The PRINCIPAL, the OWNER, or the SURETY 

above named within ninety (90) days after such claimant did or performed the last of the work or 

labor, or furnished the last of the materials for which said claim is made, starting with substantial 

accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the party to whom the materials were furnished, or 

for whom the work or labor was done or performed. Such notice shall be served by mailing the 

same by registered mail or certified mail, postage prepaid, in an envelope addressed to the 

PRINCIPAL, OWNER, or SURETY, at any place where an office is regularly maintained for the 

transaction business, or served in any manner in which legal process may be served in the state in 

which the aforesaid project is located, save that such service need not be made by a public 

officer. (b) After the expiration of one (1) year following the date on which PRINCIPAL ceased 

work on said CONTRACT, it being understood, however that if any limitation embodied in the 

BOND is prohibited by any law controlling the construction hereof, such limitation shall be 

deemed to be amended so as to be equal to the minimum period of limitation permitted by such 

law. 

 

PROVIDED, FURTHER that it is expressly agreed that this BOND shall be deemed amended 

automatically and immediately, without formal and separate amendments hereto, upon 

amendment to the Contract not increasing the contract price more than 20 percent, so as to bind 

the PRINCIPAL and the SURETY to the full and faithful performance of the Contract as so 

amended. The term “Amendment”, wherever used in this BOND and whether referring to this 

BOND, or the Contract Documents shall include any alteration, addition, extension or 

modifications of any character whatsoever. 

 

PROVIDED, FURTHER that no final settlement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR 

shall abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied. 

Page 39 of 68



16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in _____ counterparts, each one of 

which shall be deemed an original, this _________ day of ______________ 2021. 

 

ATTEST:       __________________________________ 
         (Principal) 

 

By:    _________________________________ 
   (Principal) Secretary 

 

(SEAL) 

BY: ___________________________________ 

 

___________________________________ 
         (Address) 

___________________________________ 

 

By:  __________________________________   ___________________________________ 
  Witness as to Principal 

 

        __________________________________ 
          (Address) 

 

__________________________________ 
         (Surety) 

 

ATTEST:            BY:  __________________________________ 
         (Attorney-in-Fact) 

 

By __________________________________    __________________________________ 
  (Witness to Surety)      (Address) 
 

_____________________________________             __________________________________ 

 

 

_____________________________________    __________________________________ 
  (Address)  

 

 

NOTE: Date of BOND must not be prior to date of Contract. 

If CONTRACTOR is partnership, all partners should execute BOND. 

 

 

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury 

Department’s most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business 

in the State of New Hampshire. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40 of 68



17 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

June 3, 2021 

 

 

PERFORMANCE BOND 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Contractor) 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Address of Contractor)    

 

a _____________________________________________________, hereinafter called Principal 
(Corporation, Partnership, or Individual)  

 

and __________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Surety) 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Address of Surety) 

 

hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto: 

  

Town of Amherst 

2 Main Street 

Amherst, NH 03031 

 

Hereinafter called OWNER, in the total aggregate penal sum of   

 

_____________________________________, $ ($__________________) 

  (WRITTEN WORDS) 

 

In lawful money of the United States, for payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we 

bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators’ successors, and assigns, jointly and 

severally, firmly by these presents. 

 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a 
 

certain Agreement with the OWNER, dated the ___________day of ___August___ 2021, a copy   
 

of which is hereto attached and made a part hereof for the construction of the 

 

Steel Building Electrical 

 

Page 41 of 68



18 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall well, truly and faithfully perform its duties, all the 

undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of said contract during the original 

term thereof, and any extension thereof which may be granted by the OWNER with or without 

notice to the Surety and during the one year guaranty period, and if the Principal shall satisfy all 

claims and demands incurred under such contract, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless 

the OWNER from all costs and damages which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and 

shall reimburse and repay the OWNER all outlay and expense which the OWNER may incur in 

making good any default, then this obligation shall be void: otherwise to remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees 

that no change, extension of time, alterations or additions to the terms of the contract or to 

WORK to be performed thereunder of the specifications accompanying same shall in any way 

affect its obligation on this BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, 

extension of time alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK or to the 

specifications. 

 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that it is expressly agreed that this BOND shall be deemed amended 

automatically and immediately, without formal and separate amendments hereto, upon 

amendment to the Contract not increasing the contract price more than 20 percent, so as to bind 

the PRINCIPAL and the SURETY to the full and faithful performance of the Contract as so 

amended. The term “Amendment”, wherever used in this BOND and whether referring to this 

BOND DOCUMENT, or the CONTRACT shall include any alteration, addition, extension or 

modification of any character whatsoever.

Page 42 of 68



19 

 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, this instrument is executed in _______counterparts, each one of   
        (number) 

 

which shall be deemed an original, this ________________ day of ____August____ 2021. 

 

 

ATTEST:   

 

 __________________________________ 
         (Principal) 

 

By:    _________________________________ 
   (Principal) Secretary 

 

(SEAL) 

BY: ___________________________________ 

 

___________________________________ 
         (Address) 

___________________________________ 

 

By:  __________________________________   ___________________________________ 
  Witness as to Principal 
 

        __________________________________ 
          (Address) 
 

__________________________________ 
         (Surety) 
 

ATTEST:            BY:  __________________________________ 
         Attorney-in-Fact 

 

By __________________________________    __________________________________ 
  Witness to Surety      (Address) 
 

_____________________________________             __________________________________ 

 

 

_____________________________________    __________________________________ 
  (Address)  
 

NOTE: Date of BOND must not be prior to date of Contract. 

If CONTRACTOR is partnership, all partners should execute BOND. 

 

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury 

Department’s most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business 

in the State of New Hampshire. 

 

Page 43 of 68



20 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

June 3, 2021 

Notice to Proceed 

 
Dated__    , 2021 

 

TO:                
(Insert Name of Contractor as it appears in the Bid Document) 

 

ADDRESS:             

 

PROJECT:   Steel Building Electrical   

 

CONTRACT:     #02-22   

 

 

You are notified that the Contract Time under the above contract will commence to run on  

   , 2021. By that date, you are to start performing your obligation under the 

Contract Documents and conclude such obligations on or before October 1, 2021, as specified in 

Paragraph Seventeen (17) of the “General Provisions.” 

 

Before you may start any work at the site, under Paragraph Fourteen (14) “General Provisions,” 

Certificates of insurance shall have been delivered to the Town and maintained through the 

duration of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 

 

       
  (owner)    

 

By:          
(Authorized Representative)   

 

       
(Title)    

 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 

 

 Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED is hereby acknowledged by: 

 

              
(Contractor) 

 

This  day of     , 2021  Employee Identification  

Number      

Page 44 of 68



21 

 

By:       

 

             
        (Title) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45 of 68



22 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

June 3, 2021 

 

Contractor’s Affidavit 

 

STATE OF:  New Hampshire 

 

COUNTY OF:  Hillsborough 

 

Before me, the undersigned, a          
      (Notary Public, Justice of the Peace, Alderman) 
 

In and for said county and State personally appeared,       
        (Individual, Partnership or authorized 

       , who being duly sworn according to law 
  Representatives of Corporate Contractor) 

 

Deposes and says that the cost of all work, and outstanding claims and indebtedness of whatever  

 

nature arising out of the performance of the contract between THE TOWN OF AMHERST and  

 

        of        
   (Contractor) 
Dated     , 2021 for Steel Building Electrical (#02-22) and necessary  

 

appurtenant installations have been paid in full. 

 

 

        
(Individual, Partner, or duly authorized representative of corporate contractor) 

 

        
(Title)     

 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me 

 

This   day of   , 2021 

 

      

(SEAL)   

 

       
(Notary)    

 

 

 

Page 46 of 68



23 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

June 3, 2021 

 

Contractor’s Release  
 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that         

 

              
(Contractor) 

 

of   , County of           

 

and State of       does hereby acknowledge that  

 

              
(Contractor) 

 

has on this day had, and receipt of and from THE TOWN OF AMHERST the sum of one  

 

dollar and other valuable considerations in full and complete satisfaction and payment of all 

 

sums of money owned, payable and belonging to        
         (Contractor) 
by any means whatsoever, for on account of a Contract Agreement between the TOWN OF  

 

AMHERST and        Dated  of   , 2021 
    (Contractor) 

 

Steel Building Electrical #02-22 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the said         (for myself, 
       (Contractor) 

 

my heirs, executors and administrators) (for itself, its successors and assigns) do/does by the  

 

presents remise, release, quitclaim and forever discharge the TOWN OF AMHERST, of and  

 

from all claims and demands, arising from or in connection with the said contract  

 

Dated    of   , 2021 and of and from all, and all manner of action and actions,  

 

caused and cause of action and actions, suits, debts, duties, sums and sums of money accounts, 

 

reckoning, bonds, bills, specialties, covenants, contracts, agreements, promises, variances,  

 

Page 47 of 68



24 

damages, judgments, extents, execution, claims and demands, whatsoever in law or equity, or  

 

otherwise, against the TOWN OF AMHERST its successors and assigns, which (I, my, heirs,  

 

executors, or administrators) (it, its successors and assigns) ever had, now have or which (I, my  

 

heirs, executors, or administrators) (it, its, successors and assigns) hereafter can, shall or may  

 

have, for, upon or by reason of any matter, cause, or thing whatsoever; from the beginning of  

 

recorded time to the date of these presents. 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF,            
       (Contractor) 

 

Has caused the presents to be duly executed this    day of   , 2021 

 

Signed, Sealed, and delivered in the presence of : 

 

            (Seal) 
(Individual - Contractor) 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

     (seal) 
(Partnership – Contractor)   

 
 

       By        
(Seal)          (Partner)    

 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Attested: 

 

 

      
(Corporation)   

 

 

      By        
(Secretary)      (President or Vise President)   

 

 

(Corp Seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48 of 68



25 

Town of Amherst NH 

Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH 03031 

June 3, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

STEEL BUILDING PLANS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49 of 68



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: New Hire, Accountant Department: Finance Department
Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The position of Finance Department Assistant has been changed to Accountant with 
the Board's approval at the May 24, 2021 BOS meeting. The position was posted on 
NHMA and Indeed. Fifteen applications were reviewed and eight candidates were 
offered an interview. Four candidates were interviewed either via Zoom or in-person.

I believe that Pamela-Rae Lindof possesses both the hard skills necessary to perform 
the tasks required of the Accountant and the soft skills needed to interact with both staff 
and the public, to look for efficiencies needed in the Finance office and to work as part 
of the Finance and Administration team.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
I recommend the hiring of Pamela-Rae Lindof for the position of Accountant.
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
 I move to approve the hiring of Pamela-Rae Lindof as Accountant in the Finance 
Department.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. New Hire, Accountant

Page 50 of 68



Page 51 of 68



Page 52 of 68



Page 53 of 68



Page 54 of 68



Page 55 of 68



Page 56 of 68



Page 57 of 68



Page 58 of 68



Page 59 of 68



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: AP, Payroll and Minutes Approvals Department: Finance Department
Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
Approvals:
 
  Payroll
     AP1~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of 
$243,512.92 dated July 29, 2021, subject to review and audit.
 
 Accounts Payable
 
  AP2 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$852,239.07 dated January August 3, 2021, subject to review and audit.
   
  AP3 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$21,113.74 dated August 3, 2021, subject to review and audit.
 
  Minutes
   ~ I move to approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of July 26, 2021.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2021.07.26 BOS Meeting Minutes, DRAFT 

Page 60 of 68



 
 
 
 
 

Town of Amherst, NH 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 

Barbara Landry Meeting Room 

2 Main Street 

Monday, July 26, 2021, 6:30PM 
 

1. Call to Order 1 

Chairman Peter Lyon called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 2 
 3 
Attendees: Chairman Peter Lyon, Selectman Dwight Brew, Selectman John D’Angelo, 4 
Selectman Danielle Pray, and Selectman Tom Grella. 5 

Also present: Town Administrator Dean Shankle, and Recording Secretary Kristan Patenaude 6 
 7 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – led by Kayla Woods, NH DOT. 8 
 9 

3.   Citizen’s Forum – none. 10 

 11 
4. Scheduled Appointments 12 

4.1.  Rob Clemens, ACC, and Kayla Woods, NH DOT: Appraisal and Offer for 13 
easement on ACC's Bragdon parcel abutting Rte. 101 14 

Chairman Lyon explained that this request is for a piece of property that lies in Bedford but is 15 

owned by Amherst and managed by the Amherst Conservation Commission (ACC). 16 
 17 

Rob Clemens, Chair of the ACC, explained that the ACC has had several meetings already 18 

with Kayla Woods regarding this project. A site walk was completed with the State and the 19 

appraisal process was reviewed. Town Counsel has also reviewed the documents and 20 
procedures for this project. 21 

 22 
Kayla Woods explained that this project is part of work that the DOT is doing in Bedford 23 
along Route 101, near Pulpit Brook. This project consists of three separate drainage 24 

easements: 1) a drainage system that is already in place but will be cleaned up by DOT; 2) a 25 
large drainage swale in the center of the area which will require the existing fence and gate in 26 

this area to be moved back. It will also require the removal of an existing mature tree in the 27 
area. This was compensated for as part of the appraisal. This swale will not be very deep but 28 
will drain down the back of the property towards Pulpit Brook; 3) a large box drain easement 29 
at Pulpit Brook will include a drainage channel easement for a new culvert. This will help to 30 

continue the flow of Pulpit Brook and aid in wildlife crossing. 31 
 32 
Kayla Woods explained that all of these are proposed to be permanent easements so that 33 

future fixes can be made without coming back before the Town. 34 
 35 
Rob Clemens explained that the ACC’s deed for the property has conservation restrictions on 36 
it. The ACC questioned if these restrictions would impact this proposed project, but ultimately 37 
decided that the conservation benefits of the project outweigh the restrictions. This was 38 

Page 61 of 68



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.07.26 

 PAGE 2 OF 8 

 

addressed with the Amherst Land Trust (ALT), which agreed with this assessment. The ACC 39 

believes that this project is a benefit to the environment through the better treatment of road 40 
runoff and the improved culverts allowing wildlife migration under Route 101. Rob Clemens 41 
stated that he believes this will be a win/win for this property. The ACC approved this 42 
proposal and is requesting that the Board of Selectmen do as well. 43 
 44 

In response to a question from Chairman Lyon, Kayla Woods agreed that, in the absence of an 45 
agreement from the Town, the State will take the easements anyway through the eminent 46 
domain process. 47 
 48 
Rob Clemens explained that the DOT appraised the property affected and the cherry tree to be 49 

removed at $3,200. He believes that those funds can be placed back into the ACC’s 50 
Conservation Fund. The ACC may use some of these funds to work on the fence and gate on 51 
this property. 52 

 53 
Selectman Brew noted that the ACC has determined that this proposal will not take away from 54 
the use of this property by people and/or wildlife. Rob Clemens agreed. He noted that the field 55 

on this property is currently managed as a hay field. The ACC has an agreement with a farmer 56 
to hay the field. There was a concern about making sure the farmer could still access that 57 
field, and so the DOT will restore the gate on the property to give continued access. The 58 

project is seen overall as not having a negative impact on wildlife in the area, and the 59 
improvements to the culvert will have a positive impact on wildlife. 60 

 61 
In response to a question from Selectman Grella, Kayla Woods stated that the larger bridge 62 
project in this area is not set to be advertised until September. The only thing people might see 63 

being done this year is some clearing within the right of way, but otherwise this project is set 64 

to begin next year. 65 
 66 
In response to a question from Selectman Pray, Kayla Woods stated that the longest easement 67 

is approximately 350’. Selectman Pray noted that she believes the ACC has done its due 68 
diligence on this project. 69 

 70 
In response to a question from Chairman Lyon, Rob Clemens stated that the ALT has a 71 
monitoring responsibility for the conservation restrictions on the easement, has reviewed the 72 
project, and concurs with the ACC’s assessment. 73 
 74 

In response to a question from Chairman Lyon, Rob Clemens explained that the swale being 75 
proposed is, in part, due to the new stormwater requirements. This will lead to better treatment 76 
of the runoff from the road to Pulpit Brook.  77 

 78 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 79 
approve the easements, as presented by NH DOT, and previously approved by the Amherst 80 
Conservation Commission, and to authorize Town Administrator Shankle to sign any related 81 

documents on behalf of the Town.  82 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 83 
 84 

5. Board Discussion - Board, Commission and Committee Appointments 85 

Page 62 of 68



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.07.26 

 PAGE 3 OF 8 

 

 5.1 Additional Reappointment, Historic District Commission 86 

Chairman Lyon explained that the Board previously approved appointments to 87 
boards/commissions in Town but had not been able to get a hold of one member of the 88 
Historic District Commission. That person has since been reached and would like to continue. 89 
 90 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to extend 91 

Doug Chabinsky’s appointment to the Historic District Commission for a 3-year term. 92 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 93 
 94 

6. Administration 95 
6.1 Administrative Updates 96 

Town Administrator Shankle noted that the Board of Selectmen has posted a special meeting, 97 
tomorrow at 12pm, to attend a site visit of the old F.W. Webb building. A new company is 98 
hoping to come into the building and the developer has asked the Board to visit. 99 

 100 
Town Administrator Shankle stated that Consolidated Communications is running 250 miles 101 
of fiber in the Milford area (Milford, Amherst, Brookline). He is working to get more 102 

information about where this will be available in Town and the number of houses it will serve. 103 
He stated that this service is supposed to give users 1G up and down. He believes this may be 104 
marketed to the Town as early as September or October. 105 

 106 
Town Administrator Shankle also noted that the Treasurer has stated that a considerable 107 

amount of interest has been earned for the Town on 4 CDs, $583,000. This will be placed into 108 
the Investments & Revenues line. 109 
 110 

 6.2 Village Green Park Benches 111 

Town Administrator Shankle stated that the Town was contacted by a citizen who would like 112 
to add a park bench to the Village Green.  113 
 114 

The Board discussed the process for adding new benches to the Green. It was determined that 115 
the Recreation Department and the DPW should be consulted. Selectman Brew noted that it 116 

would be a good idea to determine if there are other areas in Town that could be in need of 117 
park benches as well. 118 
 119 
 6.3 Discretionary Easements   120 
Bill Stoughton explained that the ACC and Town Administrator Shankle worked together to 121 

draft a policy for Discretionary Easements for the Board’s review. This policy is focused on 122 
the financial aspects of these easements. While the State allows for discretionary easements 123 
for a variety of purposes, the financial aspects remain the same. This proposed policy sets the 124 

assessment value of a property at 70% of the fair market value, give an initial easement length 125 
of 10 years, and allows for the amount of termination payments to be 10% of the fair market 126 
value of the land. These proposals make discretionary easements generally revenue neutral for 127 
the Town. The ACC hopes that the Board would still ask for it to review one of these 128 

proposed easements, if submitted for conservation purposes.  129 
 130 
John Harvey, ACC Commissioner, noted that the impetus of this policy is to continue to 131 

preserve open space for the benefit of wildlife.  132 

Page 63 of 68



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.07.26 

 PAGE 4 OF 8 

 

 133 

Chairman Lyon explained that a State statute for discretionary easements currently exists for 134 
qualifying property owners. The intent of this proposed policy is to help implement these 135 
easements as a benefit to the Town. 136 
 137 
In response to a question from Selectman Grella, Bill Stoughton explained that the State 138 

statute allows for continued terms, if the easement length ends, but only if these terms are 139 
agreed on at the outset. If these terms are not agreed to at the start, the better idea might be to 140 
allow one easement to end and then begin another. 141 
 142 
In response to a question from Selectman Grella, Town Administrator Shankle stated that very 143 

few other towns are using discretionary easements, partly because the State statute is 144 
somewhat confusing. 145 
 146 

Selectman D’Angelo stated that he is fine with using this as a starting point policy. The Town 147 
will likely learn more as it uses the policy. 148 
 149 

Selectman Pray agreed that she likes starting this process with some outlined standards. 150 
 151 
Selectman Brew stated that this policy appears to provide a reasonable compromise. It is for a 152 

benefit to landowners that do not want to develop their land, and a benefit to residents the 153 
Town to leave the land open for wildlife, and a benefit to the taxpayer because this proposal 154 

does not sacrifice a without losing a significant amount of tax fundsrevenue. This policy will 155 
help those inclined to pursue this type of easement. 156 
 157 

In response to a question from Selectman Brew, Bill Stoughton explained that the statute does 158 

not address a situation where one easement ends, another one is started, and the landowner 159 
possibly having to pay two exit payments for these. He noted that the Board might want to 160 
check with Town Counsel to see if one of these exit payments could be waived. 161 

 162 
A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 163 

approve the Discretionary Easement Policy as presented. 164 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 165 
 166 
 6.4 DRAFT, BOS Meeting Calendar 2022 167 
The Board reviewed its proposed calendar for meetings in 2022. Chairman Lyon noted that 168 

the Board will hold a meeting on Tuesday, February 22nd, due to a holiday on Monday 21st. 169 
The Board is set to hold a meeting on April 25th; the noted that this is the first day of school 170 
vacation. The Board is set to hold a meeting on Tuesday, October 11th, due to a holiday on 171 

Monday 10th. The Board is also set to hold a meeting on December 26th but may choose to 172 
move that date in the future. He also noted that the Town’s Deliberation Session will likely be 173 
held on February 9th. 174 
 175 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 176 
approve the 2022 Board of Selectman Meeting Calendar, as presented.  177 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 178 

 179 

Page 64 of 68



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.07.26 

 PAGE 5 OF 8 

 

 6.5 DRAFT, Proposed 2022 Holiday Schedule for Town of Amherst 180 

employees 181 
A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Brew to 182 
approve the Holiday Schedule, as presented. 183 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 184 
 185 

7. Staff Reports 186 
7.1  CIP Committee Appointments 187 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 188 
appoint John D'Angelo, Christy Houpis, Steve Coughlan, Elizabeth Kuzsma, Amy Facey and 189 
Julie Patterson to the 2021 CIP Committee. 190 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 191 
 192 

 7.2 DPW New Hire (Driver/Laborer) 193 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman Brew to approve 194 
the hiring of Brett M. Weston for the full-time laborer/driver position at DPW. 195 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 196 

 197 
 7.3 Contract for Build Out Analysis with NRPC 198 
Selectman Brew explained that the Master Plan Steering Committee has been looking into 199 

three different buildout scenarios, potential examples include what will likely happen over 200 
time if no changes are made, a Community Business Development scenario,, and a 201 

Conservation scenario. The output of these scenarios would include a report, tables, and maps. 202 
An RFP was generated and the only company that bid on it is the Nashua Regional Planning 203 
Commission (NRPC). NRPC has proposed that this process would cost approximately $7,500, 204 

which seems reasonable based on similar work done for Amherst and other towns. The 205 

majority of these funds are available within the Master Plan budget, but approximately $1,000 206 
is needed additionally. The Community Development Office has identified these funds as 207 
available in its budget for this year. He noted that, while demands on municipal services were 208 

discussed as part of this plan, broadband options were not. 209 
 210 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 211 
approve the contract with NRPC in the amount of $7,500 for preparation of a Build Out 212 
Analysis. 213 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.  214 
 215 

8. Approvals 216 
8.1 AP, Payroll and Minutes Approves 217 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 218 

approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of $265,848.49 dated July 15, 2021, 219 
subject to review and audit. 220 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 221 
 222 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 223 
approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $546,502.50 dated July 224 
20, 2021, subject to review and audit. 225 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 226 

Page 65 of 68



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.07.26 

 PAGE 6 OF 8 

 

 227 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 228 
approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $106,071.68 dated July 229 
20, 2021, subject to review and audit. 230 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 231 
 232 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 233 
approve one (1) FY21Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $3,176,200.00 dated July 234 
1, 2021, subject to review and audit (School disbursements). 235 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 236 
 237 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 238 
approve one (1) FY21Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $3,176,200.00 dated 239 
August 1, 2021, subject to review and audit (School disbursements). 240 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 241 
 242 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 243 

approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of July 12, 2021, as presented. 244 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 245 
 246 

8.2 Assessing 247 
  A. The attached application has been reviewed by our assessor and our assessor 248 

recommends granting this credit. 249 
 250 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 251 

the All-Service Veterans’ Tax Credit for tax year 2022 in the amount of $500 for Map 010, 252 

Lot 059-003. 253 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 254 

 255 

B. The attached application has been reviewed by our assessor and our assessor 256 
recommends granting this credit. 257 

 258 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 259 
the Service-Connected Total and Disabled Tax Credit for tax year 2022 in the amount of 260 
$4,000.00 for Map 003, Lot 027-007. 261 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 262 

 263 
C. The assessor has reviewed all the BTLA Form A-9’s and A-12’s submitted 264 
from Religious, Educational and Charitable Organizations as required by RSA 265 

72:23-c and RSA 72:23, VI. The RSA for Religious exemption can be found 266 
under RSA 72:23. III, Educational RSA 72:23, IV and charitable RSA 72:23, 267 
V. All the exempt properties have supplied the necessary forms and 268 
documentation within a timely manner as dictated by statute and they all have 269 

been determined to continue to qualify for 2021 tax year. 270 
 271 

Selectman Brew read a list of the exempt properties. 272 

 273 

Page 66 of 68



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.07.26 

 PAGE 7 OF 8 

 

D. Attached is a land use change tax release for Tax Map 005 Lot 059-022. 274 

The parcel was sold making this parcel less than 10 acres and not contiguous 275 
with other lots in current use under identical ownership. The Land Use Change 276 
Tax of $22,500.00 amount represents 10% of the full and true market value of 277 
$225,000. 278 

 279 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 280 
the LUCT in the amount of $22,500 for Tax Map 005 Lot 059-022. E. 281 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 282 

 283 
E. Attached is a land use change tax release for Tax Map 005 Lot 059-038. The 284 

parcel was sold making this parcel less than 10 acres and not contiguous with 285 
other lots in current use under identical ownership. The Land Use Change Tax 286 
of $24,500.00 amount represents 10% of the full and true market value of 287 

$245,000. 288 
 289 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 290 

the LUCT in the amount of $24,500 for Tax Map 005 Lot 059-038. 291 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 292 
 293 

9. Action Items 294 
The Board reviewed its action items. 295 

 296 
10. Old/New Business 297 

Selectman Brew noted that he has a clean copy of the Open Space Advisory Committee 298 

charter, with some edited typos and Selectman Pray’s suggested language included for the 299 

BOS to sign. He also noted that the Master Plan process is going along smoothly. There will 300 
be a chance for the Town to reach out to the public and hold some in-person meetings on 301 
Master Plan topics this fall. 302 

 303 
Selectman D’Angelo noted that the CIP process will begin this Wednesday at 4pm. 304 

 305 
Selectman Pray stated that the Recreation Commission will meet tomorrow night. She will 306 
discuss the park bench topic at the meeting. 307 
 308 
In response to a question from Selectman Pray, Chairman Lyon explained that the Town’s 309 

property revaluation assessments were incorrectly put online before the data was finalized. 310 
There should be letters being sent to the public this week regarding new values, and then the 311 
website will be updated. 312 

 313 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 314 
adjourn the meeting at 7:45pm. 315 
Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 316 

 317 
 318 
 319 

      320 

Page 67 of 68



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.07.26 

 PAGE 8 OF 8 

 

NEXT MEETING: Monday, August 9, 2021 321 

 322 
 323 
    324 
_________________________       __________________ 325 
Selectman Danielle Pray Date 326 

Page 68 of 68


	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Citizens' Forum
	4. Scheduled Appointments
	1. Senator Gary Daniels, Legislative updates

	5. Administration
	1. Administrative Update
	Staff Report


	6. Staff Reports
	1. Cruiser Computer Purchase
	Staff Report
	20210727100035

	2. Forestry Vehicle Acquisition
	Forestry Vehicle
	Forest Vehicle Docs

	3. DPW Electrical Upgrade and Electric to new mechani
	Staff Report
	02-22 Elect Work award Form
	LBA 02-22
	Gemini Electric 02-22
	CDS 02-22
	02-22 steel building electrical 7-22-21 (2)

	4. New Hire, Accountant
	Staff Report
	New Hire, Accountant


	7. Approvals
	1. AP, Payroll and Minutes Approvals
	Staff Report
	2021.07.26 BOS Meeting Minutes, DRAFT 


	8. Action Items
	9. Old/New Business
	 Adjournment
	 Next Meeting:  August 23, 2021

